

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

LEGISLATIVE JOURNAL

TUESDAY, JANUARY 21, 1986

SESSION OF 1986

170TH OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

No. 2

SENATE

TUESDAY, January 21, 1986.

The Senate met at 2:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore (Robert C. Jubelirer) in the Chair.

PRAYER

The Chaplain, the Reverend Mr. K. EDWARD BRANDT, Pastor of the Newport First Church of God, Newport, offered the following prayer:

Let us pray.

O Lord, our God, Your word became flesh, and it still lives among us and breathes in our midst. Members of the Senate gather as elected representatives who have come to care for constituents through debate and legislation, and Members of the Senate also gather as people who have left families near and far.

God, care for the loved ones. Prevent the ringing telephones; the signed and unsigned letters delivered to doors demanding immediate action; prevent the powerful and painful game of politics from disrupting time with families.

Thou knowest whether we have been voices or merely echoes, whether we have done Thy will or our own or, worse still, have done neither.

Help us to be realistic about ourselves. May we not steal credit for success, nor deny blame for failure. Give us the grace to take things as they are and to resolve, by Thy help, to make them what they ought to be.

Give these Senators wisdom greater than their own and relieve their minds of all other anxieties.

Let all be aware of a mandate higher than that of a ballot box, a mandate from Thee, to legislate wisely and well.

Within the echo of voices bouncing off the walls of opposition, help all to hear one clear voice. A voice shouting from the mountaintops that all people deserve Thy love, that all people deserve a chance, and all people deserve the freedom to live the unfulfilled dreams that each might have. Amen.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Chair thanks Reverend Brandt who is the guest this week of Senator Moore.

JOURNAL APPROVED

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. A quorum of the Senate being present, the Clerk will read the Journal of the preceding Session of January 7, 1986.

The Clerk proceeded to read the Journal of the preceding Session, when, on motion of Senator STAUFFER, further reading was dispensed with, and the Journal was approved.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Senator STAUFFER asked and obtained leave of absence for Senator HELFRICK, for today's Session, for personal reasons.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE GOVERNOR

NOMINATIONS BY THE GOVERNOR REFERRED TO COMMITTEE

The PRESIDENT pro tempore laid before the Senate the following communications in writing from His Excellency, the Governor of the Commonwealth, which were read as follows, and referred to the Committee on Rules and Executive Nominations:

JUDGE, COURT OF COMMON PLEAS,
BUTLER COUNTY

January 7, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate for the advice and consent of the Senate Lee A. Montgomery, Esquire, 20 Red Oak Drive, Butler 16001, Butler County, Twenty-first Senatorial District, for appointment as Judge of the Court of Common Pleas of Butler County, to serve until the first Monday of January, 1988, vice The Honorable John C. Dillon, deceased.

DICK THORNBURGH.

MEMBER OF THE COUNCIL OF TRUSTEES
OF EAST STROUDSBURG UNIVERSITY OF
PENNSYLVANIA OF THE STATE SYSTEM
OF HIGHER EDUCATION

January 16, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate for the advice and consent of the Senate Fred W. Taylor, R. D. 2, Box SV30, East Stroudsburg 18301, Monroe County, Twentieth Senatorial District, for appointment as a member of the Council of Trustees of East Stroudsburg University of Pennsylvania of the State System of Higher Education, to serve until the third Tuesday of January, 1991, and until his successor is appointed and qualified, vice Henry A. Ahnert, Jr., Bushkill, resigned.

DICK THORNBURGH.

HOUSE MESSAGE

**HOUSE INSISTS UPON ITS AMENDMENTS
NONCONCURRED IN BY THE SENATE
TO SB 1134, AND APPOINTS
COMMITTEE OF CONFERENCE**

The Clerk of the House of Representatives informed the Senate that the House insists upon its amendments nonconcurring in by the Senate to **SB 1134**, and has appointed Messrs. LLOYD, LINTON and MILLER as a Committee of Conference to confer with a similar committee of the Senate (already appointed) to consider the differences existing between the two houses in relation to said bill.

BILLS INTRODUCED AND REFERRED

The PRESIDENT pro tempore laid before the Senate the following Senate Bills numbered, entitled and referred as follows, which were read by the Clerk:

January 9, 1986

Senators REIBMAN, O'PAKE, MUSTO, LINCOLN, ZEMPRELLI, SALVATORE, LEWIS, ANDREZESKI, SINGEL, JONES, ROSS, MADIGAN, RHOADES, CORMAN, SHUMAKER, HOPPER, LOEPER and ROCKS presented to the Chair **SB 1285**, entitled:

An Act making an additional appropriation to the Department of Education for early intervention services operated by intermediate units.

Which was committed to the Committee on APPROPRIATIONS, January 9, 1986.

Senator WILLIAMS presented to the Chair **SB 1286**, entitled:

An Act declaring and adopting the song "My Pennsylvania," lyrics and music by Russell Moore, as the State song of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Which was committed to the Committee on STATE GOVERNMENT, January 9, 1986.

January 14, 1986

Senator BELL presented to the Chair **SB 1287**, entitled:

An Act designating Interstate Highway 476 as the Veterans Memorial Highway.

Which was committed to the Committee on TRANSPORTATION, January 14, 1986.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Senator LINCOLN asked and obtained leave of absence for Senator ANDREZESKI, for today's Session, for personal reasons.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVES

Senator LINCOLN. Mr. President, I would request temporary Capitol leaves for Senator Fumo, Senator Ross and Senator Rocks.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Lincoln has requested temporary Capitol leaves for Senator Fumo, Senator Ross and Senator Rocks. The Chair hears no objection.

Senator LINCOLN. Mr. President, I also request a legislative leave for Senator Stout.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Lincoln further requests a legislative leave for Senator Stout. The Chair hears no objection and the aforementioned leaves which have been requested will be granted.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

WEEKLY ADJOURNMENT

Senator STAUFFER offered the following resolution, which was read as follows:

In the Senate, January 21, 1986.

RESOLVED, (the House of Representatives concurring), That when the Senate adjourns this week it reconvene on Monday, January 27, 1986 unless sooner recalled by the President Pro Tempore of the Senate; and be it further

RESOLVED, That when the House of Representatives adjourns this week it reconvene on Monday, January 27, 1986 unless sooner recalled by the Speaker of the House of Representatives.

Senator STAUFFER asked and obtained unanimous consent for the immediate consideration of this resolution.

On the question,
Will the Senate adopt the resolution?

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION ADOPTED

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I move that the Senate do adopt this resolution.

On the question,
Will the Senate agree to the motion?

The yeas and nays were required by Senator STAUFFER and were as follows, viz:

YEAS—47

Armstrong	Hopper	Moore	Shaffer
Bell	Howard	Musto	Shumaker
Bodack	Jones	O'Pake	Singel
Brightbill	Jubelirer	Pecora	Stapleton
Corman	Kratzer	Peterson	Stauffer
Early	Lemmond	Reibman	Stout
Fisher	Lewis	Rhoades	Tilghman
Fumo	Lincoln	Rocks	Wenger
Greenleaf	Loeper	Romanelli	Williams

Hankins	Lynch	Ross	Wilt
Hess	Madigan	Salvatore	Zemprelli
Holl	Mellow	Scanlon	

NAYS—1

Kelley

A majority of the Senators having voted "aye," the question was determined in the affirmative.

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate present the same to the House of Representatives for concurrence.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVE CANCELLED

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Chair recognizes the presence on the floor of Senator Fumo, whose temporary Capitol leave will be cancelled.

RECESS

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I request a recess of the Senate until 4:00 p.m., for the purpose of holding a Republican caucus and a Democratic caucus.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Are there any objections? The Chair hears no objection, and declares a recess of the Senate until 4:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.

AFTER RECESS

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The time of recess having elapsed, the Senate will be in order.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVES

Senator ZEMPRELLI. Mr. President, I would request temporary Capitol leaves on behalf of Senator Jones and Senator Hankins.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Zemprelli has requested temporary Capitol leaves for Senator Jones and Senator Hankins. The Chair hears no objection. The leaves will be granted.

CALENDAR

HB 1013 CALLED UP OUT OF ORDER

HB 1013 (Pr. No. 2075) — Without objection, the bill was called up out of order, from page 3 of the Third Consideration Calendar, by Senator STAUFFER, as a Special Order of Business.

BILL ON THIRD CONSIDERATION AMENDED

HB 1013 (Pr. No. 2075) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act providing for the adoption of capital projects to be financed from current revenues of the Game Fund.

Considered the third time,

On the question,

Will the Senate agree to the bill on third consideration?
 Senator TILGHMAN, by unanimous consent, offered the following amendment:

Amend Title, page 1, lines 1 and 2, by striking all of said lines and inserting:

Itemizing public improvement projects to be constructed or acquired or by the Department of General Services, the Pennsylvania Fish Commission or the Pennsylvania Game Commission together with their estimated financial costs; authorizing the incurring of debt without the approval of the electors for the purpose of financing the projects to be constructed or acquired by the Department of General Services; stating the estimated useful life of the projects; and making appropriations.

Amend Bill, page 1, lines 5 through 17; page 2, lines 1 through 22, by striking out all of said lines on said pages and inserting:

**CHAPTER 1
 ITEMIZATION OF DEBT FUNDED CAPITAL PROJECT
 SUBCHAPTER A
 GENERAL PROVISIONS**

Section 101. Total authorizations.

The total authorization for the additional capital project in the category of public improvement projects itemized in section 111 and to be acquired or constructed by the Department of General Services, its successors or assigns, and to be financed by the incurring of debt, shall be \$2,160,000.

**SUBCHAPTER B
 ITEMIZATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
 Section 111. Itemization of public improvement project.**

Additional capital projects in the category of public improvement projects to be constructed or acquired by the Department of General Services, its successors or assigns, and to be financed by the incurring of debt, are hereby itemized, together with their respective estimated financial costs, as follows:

Project	Total Project Allocation
(1) Department of Military Affairs	\$2,160,000
(i) Pennhurst Center	
(A) Renovation and conversion of part of Pennhurst Center to a State Veterans' Home	2,160,000
(Base Project Allocation - \$1,800,000)	
(Design and Contingencies - \$360,000)	

**CHAPTER 3
 BOAT AND FISH FUND PROJECTS**

Section 301. Total authorizations.

The total authorization for the capital projects in the category of public improvement projects itemized in section 302 to be constructed by the Pennsylvania Fish Commission, and to be financed from current revenues of the Boat Fund and the Fish Fund pursuant to executive authorizations, shall be \$550,000.

Section 302. Itemization of Fish Commission capital projects.

The individual capital projects in the category of public improvement projects to be constructed by the Pennsylvania Fish Commission, and to be financed from current revenues of the Boat Fund and the Fish Fund pursuant to executive authorizations, are hereby itemized, together with their respective estimated costs, as follows:

- (1) Allegheny County
 - (i) Development of Deer Creek Access Area - Allegheny River, Harmar Twp. \$350,000
 - (Boat Fund - \$262,500)
 - (Fish Fund - \$87,500)
- (2) Somerset County

- (i) Development of Southwest Regional Multi-purpose Building, Somerset 200,000
(Boat Fund - \$150,000)
(Fish Fund - \$50,000)

CHAPTER 5

GAME FUND PROJECTS

Section 501. Total authorizations.

The total authorization for the capital projects in the category of public improvement projects to be acquired by the Pennsylvania Game Commission, and to be financed from current revenues of the Game Fund pursuant to executive authorizations, shall be \$1,398,000.

Section 502. Itemization of Game Commission capital projects.

The individual capital projects in the category of public improvement projects to be acquired by the Pennsylvania Game Commission, and to be financed from current revenues of the Game Fund pursuant to executive authorizations, are hereby itemized, together with their respective estimated costs, as follows:

- (1) Bedford, Cambria and Somerset Counties
(i) Land Acquisition - Lincoln, Adams and Ogle Twp. - 1,550 Acres 3465,000
- (2) Lackawanna County
(i) Land Acquisition - Archbald Boro. and Jefferson Twp. - 3,044 Acres 685,000
- (3) Lehigh County
(i) Land Acquisition - Lynn Twp. - 450 Acres 135,000
- (4) Schuylkill County
(i) Land Acquisition - West Penn Twp. - 411 Acres 113,000

CHAPTER 7

DEBT AUTHORIZATION AND APPROPRIATION

Section 701. Debt authorization.

The Governor, Auditor General and State Treasurer are hereby authorized and directed to borrow, from time to time, in addition to any authorization heretofore or hereafter enacted, on the credit of the Commonwealth, subject to the limitations provided in the current capital budget, money not exceeding in the aggregate the sum of \$2,160,000 as may be found necessary to carry out the acquisition and construction of the public improvement projects specifically itemized in a capital budget.

Section 702. Issue of bonds.

The indebtedness authorized in this act shall be incurred, from time to time, and shall be evidenced by one or more series of general obligation bonds of the Commonwealth in such aggregate principal amount for each series as the Governor, Auditor General and State Treasurer shall determine, but the latest stated maturity date shall not exceed the estimated useful life of the projects being financed as stated in section 703.

Section 703. Estimated useful life and term of debt.

(a) Estimated useful life.—The General Assembly states that the estimated useful life of the public improvement projects itemized in this act is 30 years.

(b) Term of debt.—The maximum term of the debt authorized to be incurred under this act is 30 years.

Section 704. Appropriations.

The net proceeds of the sale of the obligations authorized in this act are hereby appropriated from the Capital Facilities Fund to the Department of General Services in the maximum amount of \$2,160,000 to be used by it exclusively to defray the financial cost of the public improvement projects specifically itemized in a capital budget. After reserving or paying the expenses of the sale of the obligation, the State Treasurer shall pay to the Department of General Services the moneys as required and certified by it to be legally due and payable.

Section 705. Federal funds.

In addition to those funds appropriated in section 704, all moneys received from the Federal Government for the projects specifically itemized in this act are also hereby appropriated for those projects.

CHAPTER 9

EFFECTIVE DATE

Section 901. Effective date.

This act shall take effect immediately.

On the question,

Will the Senate agree to the amendment?

It was agreed to.

Without objection, the bill, as amended, was passed over in its order at the request of Senator TILGHMAN.

**BILL WHICH HOUSE HAS NONCONCURRED
IN SENATE AMENDMENTS**

**SENATE INSISTS UPON ITS AMENDMENTS
NONCONCURRED IN BY THE HOUSE
TO HB 954, AND APPOINTS
COMMITTEE OF CONFERENCE**

HB 954 (Pr. No. 2614) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act amending the act of May 1, 1933 (P. L. 103, No. 69), known as "The Second Class Township Code," further providing for the compensation of supervisors and for the purchase of insurance; and providing that townships and authorities using private roads for access may maintain the roads.

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I move that the Senate do insist upon its amendments to House Bill No. 954, and that a Committee of Conference on the part of the Senate be appointed.

The motion was agreed to.

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate inform the House of Representatives accordingly.

**BILLS ON CONCURRENCE IN
HOUSE AMENDMENTS**

BILL OVER IN ORDER

SB 370 — Without objection, the bill was passed over in its order at the request of Senator STAUFFER.

SENATE NONCONCURS IN HOUSE AMENDMENTS

SB 774 (Pr. No. 1683) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act amending the act of April 9, 1929 (P. L. 343, No. 176), entitled, as amended, "The Fiscal Code," further providing for the payment of public assistance funds through electronic transfers.

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I move the Senate do nonconcur in the amendments made by the House to Senate Bill No. 774, and that a Committee of Conference on the part of the Senate be appointed.

The motion was agreed to.

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate inform the House of Representatives accordingly.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVE CANCELLED

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Chair notes the presence on the floor of Senator Ross and his temporary Capitol leave will be cancelled.

CONSIDERATION OF CALENDAR RESUMED

BILLS ON CONCURRENCE IN HOUSE AMENDMENTS

BILLS OVER IN ORDER

SB 964 and **1037** — Without objection, the bills were passed over in their order at the request of Senator STAUFFER.

FINAL PASSAGE CALENDAR

BILL OVER IN ORDER

SB 1182 — Without objection, the bill was passed over in its order at the request of Senator STAUFFER.

BILL ON FINAL PASSAGE

SB 1192 (Pr. No. 1691) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act amending the act of April 9, 1929 (P. L. 177, No. 175), entitled "The Administrative Code of 1929," further providing leases in State parks and State forest land.

And the amendments made thereto having been printed as required by the Constitution,

On the question,
Shall the bill pass finally?

The yeas and nays were taken agreeably to the provisions of the Constitution and were as follows, viz:

YEAS—48

Armstrong	Hopper	Mellow	Scanlon
Bell	Howard	Moore	Shaffer
Bodack	Jones	Musto	Shumaker
Brightbill	Jubelirer	O'Pake	Singel
Corman	Kelley	Pecora	Stapleton
Early	Kratzer	Peterson	Stauffer
Fisher	Lemmond	Reibman	Stout
Fumo	Lewis	Rhoades	Tilghman
Greenleaf	Lincoln	Rocks	Wenger
Hankins	Loeper	Romanelli	Williams
Hess	Lynch	Ross	Wilt
Holl	Madigan	Salvatore	Zemprelli

NAYS—0

A constitutional majority of all the Senators having voted "aye," the question was determined in the affirmative.

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate present said bill to the House of Representatives for concurrence.

THIRD CONSIDERATION CALENDAR

BILLS OVER IN ORDER

HB 307 and **350** — Without objection, the bills were passed over in their order at the request of Senator STAUFFER.

BILL LAID ON THE TABLE

HB 677 (Pr. No. 2449) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act amending the act of June 24, 1931 (P. L. 1206, No. 331), known as "The First Class Township Code," providing for contracts for life, health, hospitalization, medical services and accident insurance for township commissioners and other officials; and increasing the compensation for auditors.

Upon motion of Senator STAUFFER, and agreed to, the bill was laid on the table.

BILL OVER IN ORDER TEMPORARILY

HB 1014 — Without objection, the bill was passed over in its order temporarily at the request of Senator STAUFFER.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVE

Senator ZEMPRELLI. Mr. President, I would request a temporary Capitol leave on behalf of Senator Williams.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Zemprelli has requested a temporary Capitol leave on behalf of Senator Williams. The Chair hears no objection. That leave will be granted.

THIRD CONSIDERATION CALENDAR RESUMED

BILLS OVER IN ORDER

SB 1075 (Pr. No. 1609) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act amending the act of November 30, 1965 (P. L. 847, No. 356), entitled "Banking Code of 1965," authorizing acquisitions of bank holding companies and banks in Pennsylvania by bank holding companies located in other states on a regional, reciprocal basis for a period of five years and on a reciprocal basis without a regional requirement thereafter.

Considered the third time,

On the question,
Will the Senate agree to the bill on third consideration?

MOTION TO REVERT TO PRIOR PRINTER'S NUMBER

Senator WILT. Mr. President, I move that Senate Bill No. 1075 revert to the form it was in under Printer's No. 1324.

On the question,
Will the Senate agree to the motion?

LEGISLATIVE LEAVE

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I would ask for a temporary Capitol leave for Senator Howard who has just been called from the floor.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Stauffer has requested a temporary Capitol leave for Senator Howard. The Chair hears no objection. The leave will be granted.

And the question recurring,
Will the Senate agree to the motion?

(During the calling of the roll, the following occurred:)

Senator SHUMAKER. Mr. President, I would like to change my vote from "no" to "aye."

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The gentleman will be so recorded.

The yeas and nays were required by Senator WILT and were as follows, viz:

YEAS—19

Armstrong	Hess	Moore	Tilghman
Bell	Howard	Rhoades	Wenger
Brightbill	Lemmond	Shaffer	Williams
Corman	Loeper	Shumaker	Wilt
Greenleaf	Madigan	Stauffer	

NAYS—28

Bodack	Jones	Musto	Ross
Early	Jubelirer	O'Pake	Salvatore
Fisher	Kelley	Pecora	Scanlon
Fumo	Kratzer	Peterson	Singel
Hankins	Lincoln	Reibman	Stapleton
Holl	Lynch	Rocks	Stout
Hopper	Mellow	Romanelli	Zemprelli

Less than a majority of the Senators having voted "aye," the question was determined in the negative.

And the question recurring,
Will the Senate agree to the bill on third consideration?

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I ask that Senate Bill No. 1075 go over in its order.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Without objection, Senate Bill No. 1075 will go over in its order.

SB 1178 and 1228 — Without objection, the bills were passed over in their order at the request of Senator STAUFFER.

SECOND CONSIDERATION CALENDAR

BILL REREPORTED FROM COMMITTEE AS AMENDED OVER IN ORDER

HB 209 — Without objection, the bill was passed over in its order at the request of Senator STAUFFER.

BILLS OVER IN ORDER

HB 249, 250, 502, 503, SB 535, 611, HB 717, 801 and SB 876 — Without objection, the bills were passed over in their order at the request of Senator STAUFFER.

BILL ON SECOND CONSIDERATION

SB 1010 (Pr. No. 1214) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act amending Title 68 (Real and Personal Property) of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes, requiring municipalities to treat condominium owners the same as single-family dwelling owners for the purposes of collection, removal and disposal of refuse.

Considered the second time and agreed to,
Ordered, To be printed on the Calendar for third consideration.

BILLS OVER IN ORDER

SB 1132, 1136, 1162 and 1180 — Without objection, the bills were passed over in their order at the request of Senator STAUFFER.

BILLS ON SECOND CONSIDERATION

SB 1194 (Pr. No. 1537) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act relating to the enforcement of liquid fuels and fuel use taxes; and making repeals.

Considered the second time and agreed to,
Ordered, To be printed on the Calendar for third consideration.

SB 1259 (Pr. No. 1672) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act amending the act of December 17, 1981 (P. L. 435, No. 135), entitled "Race Horse Industry Reform Act," further providing for the powers and duties of the State Horse Racing Commission and the State Harness Racing Commission; further regulating licensing of racing corporations and individuals involved in racing, handling of funds, and racing employees; further providing for special funds; making editorial changes; and reestablishing the State Horse Racing Commission and the State Harness Racing Commission.

Considered the second time and agreed to,
Ordered, To be printed on the Calendar for third consideration.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVES

Senator ZEMPRELLI. Mr. President, Senator Fumo and Senator Williams have left the floor. I request temporary Capitol leaves for them.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Williams is still on Capitol leave and Senator Fumo is not.

Senator ZEMPRELLI. Mr. President, I had requested temporary Capitol leave for Senator Williams. He did return to the floor and he did vote himself, although it was not acknowledged. That is why I am remaking the request.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Chair notes the gentleman's remarks. Senator Williams will still remain on temporary Capitol leave. There is no objection to the request that you have made to place Senator Fumo on temporary Capitol leave. That leave will be granted.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVE CANCELLED

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Chair also notes the presence on the floor of Senator Rocks. His temporary Capitol leave will be cancelled.

REPORT FROM COMMITTEE ON RULES AND EXECUTIVE NOMINATIONS

Senator BRIGHTBILL, by unanimous consent, from the Committee on Rules and Executive Nominations, reported

the following nominations, made by His Excellency, the Governor of the Commonwealth, which were read by the Clerk as follows:

**MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF HARRISBURG STATE HOSPITAL**

December 18, 1985.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate for the advice and consent of the Senate Charles A. Rausch, 1728-B Baron Drive, York 17404, York County, Twenty-eighth Senatorial District, for appointment as a member of the Board of Trustees of Harrisburg State Hospital, to serve until the third Tuesday of January, 1991, and until his successor is appointed and qualified, vice Alex J. Murphy, Harrisburg, whose term expired.

DICK THORNBURGH.

**MEMBER OF THE HEALTH CARE
POLICY BOARD**

December 30, 1985.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate for the advice and consent of the Senate Ethel V. Hinkel, 717 Bloom Road, Danville 17821, Montour County, Twenty-seventh Senatorial District, for reappointment as a member of the Health Care Policy Board, to serve until March 11, 1989, and until her successor is appointed and qualified.

DICK THORNBURGH.

**MEMBER OF THE CLEARFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF ASSISTANCE**

December 3, 1985.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate for the advice and consent of the Senate Lyle E. Richardson (Republican), P. O. Box 284, Madera 16661, Clearfield County, Thirty-fifth Senatorial District, for appointment as a member of the Clearfield County Board of Assistance, to serve until December 31, 1987, and until his successor is duly appointed and qualified, to add to complement.

DICK THORNBURGH.

NOMINATIONS LAID ON THE TABLE

Senator BRIGHTBILL. Mr. President, I request the nominations just read by the Clerk be laid on the table.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The nominations will be laid on the table.

**COMMUNICATION FROM THE GOVERNOR
TAKEN FROM THE TABLE**

Senator BRIGHTBILL called from the table communication from His Excellency, the Governor of the Commonwealth, recalling the following nomination, which was read by the Clerk as follows:

**JUDGE, COURT OF COMMON PLEAS,
YORK COUNTY**

December 18, 1985.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated November 22, 1985 for the appointment of Gordon A. Roe, Esquire, 2436 Wildon Drive, York 17403, York County, Twenty-eighth Senatorial District, as Judge of the Court of Common Pleas of York County, to serve until the first Monday of January, 1986, vice the Honorable James Buckingham, mandatory retirement.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.

NOMINATION RETURNED TO THE GOVERNOR

Senator BRIGHTBILL. Mr. President, I move the nomination just read by the Clerk be returned to His Excellency, the Governor.

The motion was agreed to.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The nomination will be returned to the Governor.

**COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE GOVERNOR
REPORTED FROM COMMITTEE ON RULES
AND EXECUTIVE NOMINATIONS**

Senator BRIGHTBILL, by unanimous consent, reported from the Committee on Rules and Executive Nominations, communications from His Excellency, the Governor of the Commonwealth, recalling the following nominations, which were read by the Clerk as follows:

**MEMBER OF THE PENNSYLVANIA MINORITY
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY**

January 7, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated January 6, 1986 for the appointment of Robert A. Hubbard, Jr., 587 South Front Street, Harrisburg 17101, Dauphin County, Fifteenth Senatorial District, as a member of the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority, to serve until June 2, 1986, and until his successor shall be duly appointed and qualified, vice John Dykes, Philadelphia, resigned.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.

**MEMBER OF THE PENNSYLVANIA
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION**

December 16, 1985.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomina-

tion dated December 16, 1985 for the appointment of Robert S. Ross, Jr., 307 Rex Avenue, Philadelphia 19118, Philadelphia County, Fourth Senatorial District, as a member of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, for the residue of the term ending April 1, 1987, vice James H. Cawley, Esquire, Camp Hill, resigned.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.
MEMBER OF THE PENNSYLVANIA
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

December 16, 1985.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated December 16, 1985 for the appointment of Kirk Wilson, 413 South Pitt Street, Carlisle 17013, Cumberland County, Thirty-first Senatorial District, as a member of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, for the residue of the term ending April 1, 1995, vice Michael Johnson, Bryn Mawr, whose term expired.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.
MEMBER OF THE BEDFORD COUNTY
BOARD OF ASSISTANCE

December 11, 1985.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated December 4, 1985 for the appointment of Ray Light (Republican), P. O. Box 305, Hyndman 15545, Bedford County, Thirtieth Senatorial District, as a member of the Bedford County Board of Assistance, to serve until December 31, 1987, and until his successor is duly appointed and qualified, to add to complement.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.
MEMBER OF THE CRAWFORD COUNTY
BOARD OF ASSISTANCE

December 18, 1985.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated December 3, 1985 for the appointment of Charlotte H. Forester (Republican), Route 1, Box 160-A, Titusville 16354, Crawford County, Fiftieth Senatorial District, as a member of the Crawford County Board of Assistance, to serve until December 31, 1986, and until her successor is duly appointed and qualified.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.

MEMBER OF THE CRAWFORD COUNTY
BOARD OF ASSISTANCE

December 18, 1985.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated December 3, 1985 for the reappointment of Irwin Norman Gertzog (Democrat), 468 Gilmore Street, Meadville 16335, Crawford County, Fiftieth Senatorial District, as a member of the Crawford County Board of Assistance, to serve until December 31, 1985, and until his successor is duly appointed and qualified.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.
DISTRICT JUSTICE

January 7, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated January 6, 1986 for the appointment of David Cherundolo, Esquire, 201 Alicia Street, Old Forge 18518, Lackawanna County, Twenty-second Senatorial District, as District Justice in and for the County of Lackawanna, Magisterial District 45-1-01, to serve until the first Monday of January, 1988, vice Frank Talerico, deceased.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.
NOMINATIONS RETURNED TO THE GOVERNOR

Senator BRIGHTBILL. Mr. President, I move the nominations just read by the Clerk be returned to His Excellency, the Governor.

The motion was agreed to.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The nominations will be returned to the Governor.

SENATE AT EASE

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I would ask that we be at ease for just a few minutes.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Senate will be at ease.

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, for the benefit of the Members, may I explain that we are waiting for the printing of an amendment and the reprinting of a bill, and then we will be able to move forward, hopefully within a very few minutes.

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Senate will be at ease.

(The Senate was at ease.)

The PRESIDING OFFICER (William J. Moore) in the Chair.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVES

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, prior to proceeding with the Calendar, I would ask for Capitol leaves for Senator Jubelirer and Senator Wilt.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Senator Stauffer requests Capitol leaves for Senator Jubelirer and Senator Wilt. Are there any objections? The Chair sees none. The leaves will be granted.

SUPPLEMENTAL CALENDAR NO. 2

HB 1013 CALLED UP OUT OF ORDER

HB 1013 (Pr. No. 2729) — Without objection, the bill was called up out of order, from page 1 of the Third Consideration Calendar, by Senator STAUFFER, as a Special Order of Business.

**BILL ON THIRD CONSIDERATION
AND FINAL PASSAGE**

HB 1013 (Pr. No. 2729) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act itemizing public improvement projects to be constructed or acquired or by the Department of General Services, the Pennsylvania Fish Commission or the Pennsylvania Game Commission together with their estimated financial costs; authorizing the incurring of debt without the approval of the electors for the purpose of financing the projects to be constructed or acquired by the Department of General Services; stating the estimated useful life of the projects; and making appropriations.

Considered the third time and agreed to,

And the amendments made thereto having been printed as required by the Constitution,

On the question,

Shall the bill pass finally?

The yeas and nays were taken agreeably to the provisions of the Constitution and were as follows, viz:

YEAS—47

Armstrong	Hopper	Moore	Shaffer
Bell	Howard	Musto	Shumaker
Bodack	Jones	O'Pake	Singel
Brightbill	Jubelirer	Pecora	Stapleton
Corman	Kelley	Peterson	Stauffer
Early	Kratzer	Reibman	Stout
Fisher	Lemmond	Rhoades	Tilghman
Fumo	Lincoln	Rocks	Wenger
Greenleaf	Loeper	Romanelli	Williams
Hankins	Lynch	Ross	Wilt
Hess	Madigan	Salvatore	Zemprelli
Holl	Mellow	Scanlon	

NAYS—0

A constitutional majority of all the Senators having voted "aye," the question was determined in the affirmative.

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate return said bill to the House of Representatives with information that the Senate has passed the same with amendments in which concurrence of the House is requested.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVE

Senator ZEMPRELLI. Mr. President, I would request a temporary Capitol leave on behalf of Senator O'Pake.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Senator Zemprelli requests a temporary Capitol leave for Senator O'Pake. Without objection, the leave for Senator O'Pake will be granted.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVES CANCELLED

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The presence of Senator Hankins, Senator Williams and Senator Jones is noted on the floor, and their leaves will be discontinued.

CONSIDERATION OF CALENDAR RESUMED

HB 1014 CALLED UP

HB 1014 (Pr. No. 1251) — Without objection, the bill, which previously went over in its order temporarily, was called up, from page 3 of the Third Consideration Calendar, by Senator STAUFFER.

BILL ON THIRD CONSIDERATION AMENDED

HB 1014 (Pr. No. 1251) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act providing for the adoption of capital projects to be financed from current revenues of the Boat and Fish Funds.

Considered the third time,

On the question,

Will the Senate agree to the bill on third consideration?

Senator TILGHMAN, by unanimous consent, offered the following amendment:

Amend Title, page 1, lines 1 and 2, by striking out all of said lines and inserting:

Providing for the capital budget for the fiscal year 1985-1986.

Amend Bill, page 1, lines 5 through 17; page 2, lines 1 through 16, by striking out all of said lines on said pages and inserting:

Section 1. Short title and construction.

(a) Short title.—This act shall be known and may be cited as the Capital Budget Act of 1985-1986.

(b) Supplements.—A reference to this act shall be deemed to include a reference to the supplements to this act.

(c) Fiscal Code.—The provisions and definitions of Article XVI-B of the act of April 9, 1929 (P.L.343, No.176), known as The Fiscal Code, shall apply to this act to the extent they are not inconsistent with this act.

Section 2. Overall limitations on debt to be incurred for capital projects.

The maximum principal amount of additional debt to be incurred during the 1985-1986 fiscal year, and thereafter until the enactment of the 1986-1987 capital budget specifying the maximum debt for the 1986-1987 fiscal year, for capital projects specifically itemized in a capital budget pursuant to section 7(a)(4) of Article VIII of the Constitution of Pennsylvania, and the fund to be charged with the repayment of such debt, shall, with respect to each category of capital projects, be as follows:

Category	Amount	Fund
(1) Public Improvement Projects: Department of General Services		

(i) Construction	\$160,000,000	General Fund or
(ii) Furniture and Equipment	5,000,000	Special Fund as applicable
(2) Transportation		
Assistance Projects	70,000,000	General Fund
Total	\$235,000,000	

Section 3. Effective date.

This act shall take effect immediately.

On the question,

Will the Senate agree to the amendment?

Senator FUMO. Mr. President, this amendment is very similar to a bill that is currently sitting in the Committee on Appropriations, with the exception of the fact that the money for the Philadelphia Convention Center is somehow lacking from that bill. I know that was not a typographical error or one that was made in the Legislative Reference Bureau.

Mr. President, not being one who wants to delay these other projects that are so important to the Commonwealth, I would like to ask the Majority Leader, the gentleman from Chester, Senator Stauffer, if he would stand for interrogation.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Will the gentleman from Chester, Senator Stauffer, permit himself to be interrogated?

Senator STAUFFER. I will, Mr. President.

Senator FUMO. Mr. President, I would like to ask the Majority Leader whether or not he will give me and my colleagues a firm commitment that the Philadelphia Convention Center issues will be dealt with next week, as I understand he has already committed to privately?

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, we are very actively working on the Philadelphia Convention Center project. There have been a great many meetings, and I would say the meetings have been very positive in nature. I personally feel very optimistic about the situation. We had a very long discussion in the Republican caucus today with regard to the project. We are moving forward on the project. I believe I am safe in indicating to the gentleman that it is our intention to move forward. The only caveat in being very accurate in answering the gentleman's question, Mr. President, would be when he stipulates the next week. I would hope things will fall into place. I fully expect they will, but when you tie it down to a time period as early as next week, I would not want to commit to that and then feel a few days from now that I had not been truthful.

Senator FUMO. Mr. President, what I meant by next week was that we would complete it before we left here next week. If I was unclear, I apologize, but maybe I can rephrase the question. Maybe the Majority Leader can give me a deadline that he is willing to commit to. If it is not by next Wednesday, the following Wednesday, as long as there is a deadline, Mr. President. One of the problems the gentleman should be aware of with regard to this issue is that it has dragged on and on and on for many, many months now and costs are escalating quite rapidly, and there appears to be a lot of consternation and speculation and things of that nature with regard to this. We from Philadelphia are receiving an awful lot of pressure, as I am sure my colleagues from around the

state are, on the issue from both representatives of the city, from members of the business community in the Delaware Valley area, from members of the labor unions in the Delaware Valley area, and I would like to have from the Majority Leader some realistic deadline that he can give to me, if not next week, then when?

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I fully recognize the gentleman's words with regard to the great deal of interest and the great deal of pressure that is involved in this project. I would point out to him, as he well knows, that I have spent an inordinate amount of my personal time on this matter over the past number of weeks. The only commitment I can make as far as a time frame is concerned is that we are very seriously working on this and have every intention of moving this to a conclusion just as quickly as possible. I can assure the gentleman that the concern he has expressed is being heard by the Members of our caucus and will certainly be taken into full consideration as we move forward with this process.

Mr. President, I am not dancing on the head of a pin or dodging the gentleman in giving that kind of a response. I am being very accurate in pointing out to him we have a complex piece of legislation to deal with, I believe we are making great progress with it, and I believe we are going to bring this to a successful conclusion, but I am not in a position to stand here today and say that on a given date we will have reached that conclusion. I am hopeful we will reach that conclusion in a time frame that would be more than pleasing to the gentleman.

Senator FUMO. Mr. President, that, obviously, is an answer that does not please me. Perhaps we can go about this in a different way. Will the gentleman assure me that we will have this matter completed before we break for recess before the Primary Election? Perhaps we can narrow it down that way.

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I can assure the gentleman, as far as my timetable is concerned, I certainly want this issue dealt with and out of the way before we reach that point. I must point out that we have other items on our agenda that are extremely important and, in my judgment, this is something that should be dealt with and settled one way or the other before we go to that time period.

Senator FUMO. Mr. President, now we are getting somewhere. Will the gentleman then assure me, possibly, that we will resolve this before we break for our recess for budget hearings?

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I will not assure him of that, but I would point out that is a possibility.

Senator FUMO. Mr. President, so then the best I can get is a commitment that we will resolve it before we break for the Primary Election, not necessarily that we will get a commitment that we will do it before we break for the budget hearings. I thank the Majority Leader for that.

Mr. President, I am, of course, not happy with those responses, because this issue has been languishing around for about a year now, I believe, if not longer, and I really think we have delayed far too long. It was, Mr. President, my inten-

tion at this point in time to offer an amendment to the amendment putting back in the money for the Philadelphia Convention Center so as to get the ball moving, and it is still my natural, political and legal inclination to do that. However, at the request of the city administration, I am specifically refraining from doing so and will not do so. I do not think it is the best judgment, but I will yield to the leadership in Philadelphia who have requested me to do that. In that sense, Mr. President, I assume the rest of this amendment is agreed to by our side.

Senator SALVATORE. Mr. President, I would just like to say a few things. I was listening to that exchange between the Majority Leader and the gentleman from Philadelphia, Senator Fumo, and I would like to add my two cents to it. We have been working very feverishly to try to put this convention center together. As I have explained to the Senator, my good colleague from Philadelphia, there are a lot of questions that are unanswered. We have been working hard on this, and I think we have accomplished a lot today. I think if the Senator from Philadelphia would be patient, I think we will have a convention center. We might have to change the name to the Wenger Convention Center, but the gentleman from Lancaster, Senator Wenger, says that he would like to expand it out to Lancaster County.

Seriously, I just feel that in a complex construction involvement of this magnitude that involves all this money, it is wise for us to proceed cautiously and make sure we do not make mistakes that have been made in other projects. I think we can save a lot of money by doing that, and we can give the taxpayers of Pennsylvania a good convention center.

Senator WILLIAMS. Mr. President, I would like to add my voice and comment to the desire that we accomplish a result on the convention center in the Philadelphia area. Needless to say, we have for months been wrestling with that proposition, sufficient in my judgment that we by this point can have some guidepost, timewise, as to when this matter can be accomplished and resolved. To add one other brief note, it seems to me that those issues have been sharpened and reduced. I am hopeful all of the weighty and substantive considerations will be quickly and correctly resolved for the benefit of all the parties concerned. Just adding that note of both urgency, perceptiveness and insight, I am hopeful the answers that the Majority Leader gave were not—and I know they were not—intended to be evasive or carried out longer but, rather, to be as accurate as possible, and I just wanted to add that note.

Senator PECORA. Mr. President, I want to bring to this Senate's attention the fact that not everybody here is in favor of \$185 million for a convention center in Philadelphia. I also want to bring to their attention that I introduced the resolution two months ago that if you are really interested in your city you would get private enterprise to invest into a convention center.

POINT OF ORDER

Senator ROCKS. Mr. President, I rise to a point of order.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The gentleman from Philadelphia, Senator Rocks, will state it.

Senator ROCKS. Mr. President, what is before the Senate at this moment?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. We are on the amendment offered by Senator Tilghman to House Bill No. 1014, Senator.

Senator ROCKS. Mr. President, then as a matter of personal privilege I would ask that the Chair would enforce that the remarks and the exchanges on this floor be limited to that matter which is in a bona fide way in front of this Chamber right now.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. It is the feeling of the Chair that the gentleman has stated a point of order instead of a point of personal privilege and that you are correct that the debate should be limited to the amendment and not to the merits of the bill. I would caution the gentleman from Allegheny, Senator Pecora, to confine his remarks to the substance of the amendment.

Senator KELLEY. Mr. President, may we be at ease for a moment?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senate will be at ease.

(The Senate was at ease.)

Senator PECORA. Mr. President, as you probably realize, I am not as intelligent as the gentleman from Philadelphia, Senator Rocks, because I assumed that when the previous Senators were speaking about a convention center, that I had the same privilege. But, being that it is a point of order and with your decision, I must ask that the previous Senator's remarks be taken from the record. They were out of order also.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Senator Pecora, the Chair does not have the authority to strike remarks from the Senate record.

Senator PECORA. Mr. President, why do they have a priority to speak?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senate will be at ease.

(The Senate was at ease.)

Senator ROCKS. Mr. President, I would like to withdraw the point of order.

Senator PECORA. Mr. President, as I was previously stating, that I used my county as an example, we have the City of Pittsburgh Convention Center which has been a flop. We had to raise the hotel-motel tax to help them a few years ago. We have a private enterprise in the Borough of Monroeville which is doing a fantastic job. They have no state subsidies, no hotel-motel tax, and they are on a profitable basis. They are making money, and they are paying taxes to the municipality. They are paying taxes to the county, and they are paying taxes to the Commonwealth.

In my resolution I recommended that we give the hotel-motel tax to private enterprise to invest in convention centers in this Commonwealth. I feel by taking that action we will not then be using the taxpayers' dollars of Pennsylvania. We could initiate convention centers in any part of this Commonwealth with private enterprise money. I feel we have a respon-

sibility to the people who elect us to protect their tax dollars, to provide jobs, to entice private enterprise, and to have a subsidy of taxes into this Commonwealth to benefit all.

Senator FUMO. I have two brief remarks, Mr. President. First of all, I recognize the words of the gentleman from Allegheny, Senator Pecora, and that is easy to say after he has already gotten his convention center for Allegheny County.

Next, Mr. President, in response to the gentleman from Philadelphia, Senator Salvatore, we will gladly call this convention center the Salvatore, Bell, Pecora, or whatever, if he gives me three votes and we will gladly enshrine their names in bronze, gold, silver, platinum, whatever they would like. If they want to talk about it, I will be here in the Chamber.

Senator BELL. Mr. President, I was going to keep quiet on this, but this has developed into a cat fight. I think there are more than three votes over here on this side, but you do not get those votes by pulling the cat's tail. Let me suggest that a number of us in here who are for the convention center want to see a proper bill with safeguards for the state's financial share. Some of you can snicker and laugh all you want but, from what I read in the newspaper, nobody even knows who speaks for the City of Philadelphia, whether it is the gentleman from Philadelphia, Senator Fumo, the mayor or the president of council. Get your act in order.

Senator WILLIAMS. Mr. President, I do not want to carry on the debate with the cat, so to speak, but I do want to indicate it is clear that we from Philadelphia at least speak for Philadelphia legislatively on this issue, and I have the dubious distinction of being the leader of that delegation so I do speak officially for that. Any clarification the gentleman may like, I would be glad to provide him with that. I do not want it to be understood that the media necessarily speaks for Philadelphia. They join in our effort, however. We are like Republicans, they argue; like Democrats, they argue. That is nothing new. I speak for the Philadelphia delegation, and the Philadelphia delegation in the Senate speaks for Philadelphia.

Senator JONES. Mr. President, in light of the question that my good colleague over there wanted to know who speaks for Philadelphia, I have to stand because, simply, I feel a little insulted. I am here to speak for, certainly, a part of Philadelphia and, certainly, to vote here. My vote would help the whole Commonwealth. I am saying I do not know what is going on here, but I am very dead serious about the convention center. We need the convention center in Philadelphia. I speak for a lot of my people who do a lot of hotel work, and right now what is happening in Philadelphia is a lot of our hotels are in trouble. If we do not get the convention center, there is going to be chaos in Philadelphia. I do not know who is playing political jokes or what is going on here, but I stand, truly, to speak for the people of Philadelphia who need that convention center. I am not over here snickering. As a matter of fact, I am shocked that it is even remotely funny. It is a very serious situation. I would hope my colleagues, both on this side and the other side, would take this situation very seriously and let us get down to business as soon as possible so we can have a vote on it.

And the question recurring,
Will the Senate agree to the amendment?
It was agreed to.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. House Bill No. 1014 will go over, as amended.

SENATE AT EASE

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I think if we are at ease for a brief moment we can distribute the Supplemental Calendars and we will be able to proceed to complete the action on House Bill No. 1014, and that will end our Calendar considerations for the day.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senate will be at ease for a brief moment.

(The Senate was at ease.)

SUPPLEMENTAL CALENDAR NO. 1

HB 1014 CALLED UP OUT OF ORDER

HB 1014 (Pr. No. 2728) — Without objection, the bill was called up out of order, from page 1 of the Third Consideration Calendar, by Senator STAUFFER, as a Special Order of Business.

BILL ON THIRD CONSIDERATION AND FINAL PASSAGE

HB 1014 (Pr. No. 2728) — The Senate proceeded to consideration of the bill, entitled:

An Act providing for the capital budget for the fiscal year 1985-1986.

Considered the third time and agreed to,

And the amendments made thereto having been printed as required by the Constitution,

On the question,
Shall the bill pass finally?

LEGISLATIVE LEAVE CANCELLED

The PRESIDING OFFICER. It comes to my attention that we have never taken Senator Fumo off leave. The Chair recognizes the presence on the floor of Senator Fumo. His leave is cancelled.

And the question recurring,
Shall the bill pass finally?

The yeas and nays were taken agreeably to the provisions of the Constitution and were as follows, viz:

YEAS—47

Armstrong	Hopper	Moore	Shaffer
Bell	Howard	Musto	Shumaker
Bodack	Jones	O'Pake	Singel
Brightbill	Jubelirer	Pecora	Stapleton
Corman	Kelley	Peterson	Stauffer
Early	Kratzer	Reibman	Stout
Fisher	Lemmond	Rhoades	Tilghman
Fumo	Lincoln	Rocks	Wenger

Greenleaf	Loeper	Romanelli	Williams
Hankins	Lynch	Ross	Wilt
Hess	Madigan	Salvatore	Zemprelli
Holl	Mellow	Scanlon	

NAYS—0

A constitutional majority of all the Senators having voted "aye," the question was determined in the affirmative.

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate return said bill to the House of Representatives with information that the Senate has passed the same with amendments in which concurrence of the House is requested.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

SENATE RESOLUTION

HONORING DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR.,
ON THE ANNIVERSARY OF HIS BIRTH

Senator BELL, on behalf of himself and Senators JONES, STAUFFER, SHUMAKER, HANKINS, WILLIAMS and BODACK offered the following resolution (**Senate Resolution No. 116**), which was read as follows:

In the Senate, January 21, 1986.

A RESOLUTION

Honoring Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., on the anniversary of his birth.

WHEREAS, Martin Luther King, Jr., born, on January 15, 1929, in Atlanta, Georgia, followed in his father's and grandfather's footsteps by becoming a Baptist minister after graduation from Morehouse College in 1948 and Crozer Theological Seminary in 1951; and

WHEREAS, He received his doctorate from Boston University in 1955; and

WHEREAS, In 1954, as pastor of the Dexter Avenue Baptist Church in Montgomery, Alabama, Dr. King organized a city-wide boycott of the city's segregated busing system which led to a United States Supreme Court decision forcing desegregation of the buses; and

WHEREAS, Throughout this and later civil rights protests, Dr. King espoused the philosophy of nonviolent passive resistance and civil disobedience; and

WHEREAS, In 1957, Dr. King moved back to Atlanta to join his father as associate pastor of the Ebenezer Baptist Church and organized the Southern Christian Leadership Conference to fight segregation and discrimination throughout the south; and

WHEREAS, During the following years, his protest activities resulted in being frequently arrested, beaten, jailed and threatened with violence; and

WHEREAS, Dr. King led a massive voter registration drive in Selma, Alabama, resulting in the famous freedom march to Montgomery, the State Capital; and

WHEREAS, His famous march on Washington, D.C., in 1963 culminated in a great rally at the Lincoln Memorial at which he gave his immortal "I have a dream" speech; and

WHEREAS, Dr. King's efforts resulted in enactment of the Federal Civil Rights Act in 1964; and

WHEREAS, His personal sacrifices and determined leadership of the civil rights movement in the United States were formally recognized in 1964 when he received the Nobel Peace Prize; and

WHEREAS, Dr. King was assassinated in 1968 while in Memphis, Tennessee, to organize a "poor people's campaign"; and

WHEREAS, The third Monday of January has been designated as a national holiday in order to give all Americans an opportunity to reflect upon the profound impact Dr. King has had on life in the United States; therefore be it

RESOLVED, That the Senate honor Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., on the anniversary of his birth and urge all Pennsylvanians to commemorate his life and what it stands for by participating in activities and ceremonies honoring Dr. King.

Senator BELL asked and obtained unanimous consent for the immediate consideration of this resolution.

On the question,

Will the Senate adopt the resolution?

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 116 ADOPTED

Senator BELL. Mr. President, I move that the Senate do adopt this resolution.

On the question,

Will the Senate agree to the motion?

Senator BELL. Mr. President, the reason why I have introduced this resolution is because Dr. King in his lifetime spent years in Pennsylvania, and they were spent in Delaware County, in Upland where I live, at the Crozer Theological Seminary. He preached in two churches while he was a student up here. He had preached down in Georgia, but when he was an associate pastor he preached in Chester at Calvary Baptist under Reverend Pious Barbour, now deceased, and at Bethany Baptist in Chester under Reverend Daniel Scott who is still the pastor. There are many people in Chester, including a person who is actually almost a member of our family, who has worked for us for a number of years, who were there in the church during his first sermon. It is because of this, the close affiliation between Pennsylvania, Chester and the Borough of Upland with Dr. King, that it is only fitting that we adopt this resolution. If we look back, it was this Body that adopted a resolution commemorating the birthday of Dr. King before the nation saw fit to do so, and I know there are Senators in this room right now who cosponsored and worked on that resolution in those days.

And the question recurring,

Will the Senate agree to the motion?

The motion was agreed to and the resolution was adopted.

CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS

The PRESIDING OFFICER laid before the Senate the following resolutions, which were read, considered and adopted:

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Sears by Senator Armstrong.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and Mrs. Victor Martinelli and to Chief Edward Sobehart by Senator Bodack.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to David C. Gentzel, Bryan T. Maloy, David T. Ault, David Tice and to Joseph L. Schoch, Jr. by Senator Corman.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Andrew Moxie, Mr. and Mrs. Gehrhart H. Klaas, Dr. Nancy Auer,

Mr. and Mrs. Louis Vidic, Sr., Quaker Valley Senior High School Soccer Team, Lt. Thomas Williams and to David A. Cox by Senator Early.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Thomas Felke by Senator Fumo.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mrs. Leona Stachowiak by Senator Greenleaf.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Timothy A. Mengel and to Mr. and Mrs. Alfred H. Souden by Senator Helfrick.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mrs. Virginia Lantell Ehnott by Senator Holl.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Francis R. Grady, William S. Brandamore, Jr. and to Donald W. Perrego by Senator Hopper.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and Mrs. Winfield A. Black, Mr. and Mrs. Fred A. Hoenstine, Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Hillegas, Mr. and Mrs. Adrian Gartland, Mr. and Mrs. Chilton R. Summers, Mr. and Mrs. Woodrow Miller, Mr. and Mrs. Fred Bingham, Mr. and Mrs. Anthony J. Santarsieri, Mr. and Mrs. Hoyt Sequin, Mr. and Mrs. William Ciccarelli, Mr. and Mrs. Joseph F. Francis, Mr. and Mrs. V. Glenn Hollinger, Mr. and Mrs. Paul C. Van Orman, Mr. and Mrs. Edgar Barley, Mr. and Mrs. Carl W. Bickett and to Mr. and Mrs. Herbert Harker by Senator Jubelirer.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Brian W. Exner, Marc A. Bamberger, The Honorable Judge Madaline Palladino, Jimmie Ronald Schaffer and to Ralph E. Smickley by Senator Kratzer.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and Mrs. Joseph W. Malloy and to Mr. and Mrs. Walter Dombrowski by Senator Lemmond.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to William J. Garry and to Mr. and Mrs. Robert Smith by Senator Lewis.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Joseph J. Waltos by Senator Lincoln.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Jeffrey Erb by Senator Loeper.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and Mrs. George M. Wilt, Mr. and Mrs. Robert Fitch, Sr., Mr. and Mrs. Eugene L. Luckey, Mr. and Mrs. Howard I. Wilson, Sr., Mr. and Mrs. Norman E. Webster, Mr. and Mrs. Clyde A. Carson, Mr. and Mrs. Ralph E. Kelchner, Mr. and Mrs. William F. Manz and to Mr. and Mrs. Russell E. Stermer by Senator Madigan.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Phil Condella, Michael Connor, Brian James, Patrick Naughton, Brian Kovatch, Thomas Evans, James Telford, Clayton Drumheller, Robert Hartman, Richard Schraeder, Thomas Lutkowsky, Leroy Jennings, Richard Celuck, Harry Lyons, Michael Carrotto and to James Douglas by Senator Mellow.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Ben Dum and to the Gettysburg College 1985 "Bullets" Football Team by Senator Moore.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Michael Paul Cassic, III by Senator Musto.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Robert Basile by Senator O'Pake.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Robert M. Reagle by Senator Reibman.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and Mrs. Michael Romaniscon by Senator Rhoades.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to the Riverside Distributive Education Clubs of America and to Anthony J. Ricciuti by Senator Ross.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Robert George, Mr. and Mrs. Albert Stoops, Mr. and Mrs. H. Carl Daum and to Mr. and Mrs. Norman A. Miller by Senator Shaffer.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to The Honorable William W. Lipsitt by Senators Shumaker and Hopper.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and Mrs. Robert Earl Espy and to Robert Eric Shaffer by Senator Stapleton.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and Mrs. Clyde Bane by Senator Stout.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Isabel Pittenger by Senator Tilghman.

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Bud Hetrick by Senator Wilt.

CONDOLENCE RESOLUTIONS

The PRESIDING OFFICER laid before the Senate the following resolutions, which were read, considered and adopted:

Condolences of the Senate were extended to the family of the late Harris W. Beam by Senator Kratzer.

Condolences of the Senate were extended to the family of the late John Buonocore, III by Senator Hopper.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE GOVERNOR

JOINT SESSION

The PRESIDING OFFICER laid before the Senate the following communication in writing from His Excellency, the Governor of the Commonwealth, which was read as follows:

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
Harrisburg

January 13, 1986

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

If it meets with the approval of the General Assembly, I would like to address the Members in Joint Session on Tuesday, February 4, 1986, at a time convenient to the General Assembly.

DICK THORNBURGH,
Governor

**NOMINATIONS BY THE GOVERNOR
REFERRED TO COMMITTEE**

The PRESIDING OFFICER laid before the Senate the following communications in writing from His Excellency, the Governor of the Commonwealth, which were read as follows, and referred to the Committee on Rules and Executive Nominations:

SHERIFF, SOMERSET COUNTY

January 21, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate for the advice and consent of the Senate John A. Watkins, R. D. 4, Box 110 A-2, Berlin 15530, Somerset County, Thirty-second Senatorial District, for appointment as Sheriff in and for the County of Somerset, to serve until the first Monday of January, 1988, vice Guy H. Davis, resigned.

DICK THORNBURGH.

**MEMBER OF THE CENTRE COUNTY
BOARD OF ASSISTANCE**

January 21, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate for the advice and consent of the Senate Paul W. Houck (Republican), 1620 Cherry Hill Road, State College 16801, Centre County, Thirty-fourth Senatorial District, for appointment as a member of the Centre County Board of Assistance, to serve until December 31, 1987, and until his successor is duly appointed and qualified, to add to complement.

DICK THORNBURGH.

**MEMBER OF THE NORTHAMPTON COUNTY
BOARD OF ASSISTANCE**

January 21, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate for the advice and consent of the Senate Earl G. Keyser (Democrat), 111 North Tenth Street, Easton 18042, Northampton County, Eighteenth Senatorial District, for reappointment as a member of the Northampton County Board of Assistance, to serve until December 31, 1988, and until his successor is duly appointed and qualified.

DICK THORNBURGH.

**MEMBER OF THE NORTHAMPTON COUNTY
BOARD OF ASSISTANCE**

January 21, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate for the advice and consent of the Senate Grace Lipari (Democrat), 153 South Seventh Street, Easton 18042, Northampton County, Eighteenth Senatorial District, for appointment as a member of the Northampton County Board of Assistance, to serve until December 31, 1988, and until her successor is duly appointed and qualified.

DICK THORNBURGH.

**RECALL COMMUNICATIONS
REFERRED TO COMMITTEE**

The PRESIDING OFFICER laid before the Senate the following communications in writing from His Excellency, the Governor of the Commonwealth, which were read as follows, and referred to the Committee on Rules and Executive Nominations:

**MEMBER OF THE STATE BOARD
OF AUCTIONEER EXAMINERS**

January 21, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated December 30, 1985 for the reappointment of Richard James Moyer, Box 187, 2 Bonnie Brae Road, Spring City 19475, Chester County, Nineteenth Senatorial District, as a member of the State Board of Auctioneer Examiners, to serve for three years and until his successor is appointed and qualified, but not longer than six months beyond that period.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.

**MEMBER OF THE STATE BOARD
OF FUNERAL DIRECTORS**

January 21, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated December 18, 1985 for the appointment of Charles Freeberg, 103 South Fraley Street, Kane 16735, McKean County, Twenty-fifth Senatorial District, as a member of the State Board of Funeral Directors, to serve for five years, and until his successor is appointed and qualified, but not longer than six months beyond that period, vice Anthony A. Sanvito, Coraopolis, whose term expired.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.

**JUDGE, COURT OF COMMON PLEAS,
BUTLER COUNTY**

January 21, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated January 7, 1986 for the appointment of Lee A. Montgomery, Esquire, 20 Red Oak Drive, Butler 16001, Butler County, Twenty-first Senatorial District, as Judge of the Court

of Common Pleas of Butler County, to serve until the first Monday of January, 1988, vice The Honorable John C. Dillon, deceased.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.

MEMBER OF THE CENTRE COUNTY
BOARD OF ASSISTANCE

January 21, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated January 2, 1986 for the reappointment of Clare A. Becker (Republican), P. O. Box 37, Lemont 16851, Centre County, Thirty-fourth Senatorial District, as a member of the Centre County Board of Assistance, to serve until December 31, 1987, and until his successor is duly appointed and qualified.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.

MEMBER OF THE VENANGO COUNTY
BOARD OF ASSISTANCE

January 21, 1986.

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

In accordance with the power and authority vested in me as Governor of the Commonwealth, I do hereby recall my nomination dated December 3, 1985 for the appointment of John O. Kaufman (Republican), 4 Drake Drive, Oil City 16301, Venango County, Twenty-fifth Senatorial District, as a member of the Venango County Board of Assistance, to serve until December 31, 1987, and until his successor is duly appointed and qualified, to add to complement.

I respectfully request the return to me of the official message of nomination on the premises.

DICK THORNBURGH.

BILLS INTRODUCED AND REFERRED

The PRESIDING OFFICER laid before the Senate the following Senate Bills numbered, entitled and referred as follows, which were read by the Clerk:

January 21, 1986

Senators GREENLEAF, WENGER, HELFRICK, RHOADES and ANDREZESKI presented to the Chair **SB 1288**, entitled:

An Act amending the act of May 17, 1921 (P. L. 789, No. 285), entitled, as amended, "The Insurance Department Act of one thousand nine hundred and twenty-one," creating the Office of Insurance Consumer Advocate.

Which was committed to the Committee on BANKING AND INSURANCE, January 21, 1986.

Senators GREENLEAF and BELL presented to the Chair **SB 1289**, entitled:

An Act amending Title 42 (Judiciary and Judicial Procedure) of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes, authorizing the Judicial Inquiry and Review Board to issue advisory opinions.

Which was committed to the Committee on JUDICIARY, January 21, 1986.

Senators SALVATORE, CORMAN, HELFRICK, MELLOW and FISHER presented to the Chair **SB 1290**, entitled:

An Act amending Title 75 (Vehicles) of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes, providing for the issuance of different size and color drivers' licenses to persons under 21 years of age.

Which was committed to the Committee on TRANSPORTATION, January 21, 1986.

Senators SALVATORE, CORMAN, HELFRICK, MELLOW and FISHER presented to the Chair **SB 1291**, entitled:

An Act amending Title 18 (Crimes and Offenses) of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes, prohibiting the possession of an altered or false driver's license by a person under the age of 21.

Which was committed to the Committee on TRANSPORTATION, January 21, 1986.

Senators SALVATORE, CORMAN, HELFRICK, MELLOW and FISHER presented to the Chair **SB 1292**, entitled:

An Act amending the act of April 12, 1951 (P. L. 90, No. 21), entitled "Liquor Code," limiting the liability of licensees who rely on certain drivers' licenses as proof of age.

Which was committed to the Committee on LAW AND JUSTICE, January 21, 1986.

Senator SALVATORE presented to the Chair **SB 1293**, entitled:

An Act amending Title 75 (Vehicles) of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes, providing for a space to insert a driver's blood type on a driver's license.

Which was committed to the Committee on TRANSPORTATION, January 21, 1986.

ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE SECRETARY

The following announcements were read by the Secretary of the Senate:

SENATE OF PENNSYLVANIA

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 22, 1986

9:00 A.M.	LAW AND JUSTICE (Public Hearing on House Bill No. 447)	Room 461, 4th Floor Conference Rm., North Wing
11:30 A.M.	JUDICIARY (to consider the Sunset Reports and proposed legislation of the Pennsylvania Crime Commission and the Pennsylvania Commission on Sentencing)	Room 461, 4th Floor Conference Rm., North Wing
1:00 P.M.	BANKING AND INSURANCE (to consider Senate Bill No. 1087 and House Bills	Room 460, 4th Floor Conference Rm.,

No. 452 and 637 North Wing

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 1986

1:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Public Utility Commission)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
2:30 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Office of Consumer Advocate)	Senate Majority Caucus Room

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 1986

9:30 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Education)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
1:30 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, State System of Higher Education)	Senate Majority Caucus Room

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 1986

9:00 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Public Welfare)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
3:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Pennsylvania State University)	Senate Majority Caucus Room

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 1986

9:00 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Environmental Resources)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
1:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of State)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
2:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Governor's Office and Executive Offices)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
3:30 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Corrections)	Senate Majority Caucus Room

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 1986

9:00 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Agriculture)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
10:30 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Insurance)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
1:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Attorney General)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
2:30 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Judiciary)	Senate Majority Caucus Room

MONDAY, MARCH 3, 1986

9:30 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, State Employees Retirement Board)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
10:30 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, School Employees Retirement Board)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
11:30 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Lincoln University)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
1:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, University of Pittsburgh)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
2:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Temple University)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
3:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Military Affairs)	Senate Majority Caucus Room

TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 1986

9:00 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Revenue)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
10:00 A.M.	ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES AND ENERGY (Public Hearing on Senate Bill No. 1211)	Room 461, 4th Floor Conference Rm., North Wing
11:00 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of General Services)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
1:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Health)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
2:30 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Aging)	Senate Majority Caucus Room

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 5, 1986

9:00 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Transportation)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
11:00 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
1:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Pennsylvania State Police)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
2:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Commerce)	Senate Majority Caucus Room

THURSDAY, MARCH 6, 1986

9:00 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Labor and Industry)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
11:00 A.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Auditor General)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
1:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Treasury)	Senate Majority Caucus Room
2:00 P.M.	APPROPRIATIONS (Budget Hearing, Department of Community Affairs)	Senate Majority Caucus Room

ADJOURNMENT

Senator STAUFFER. Mr. President, I move the Senate do now adjourn until Wednesday, January 22, 1986, at 11:00 a.m., Eastern Standard Time. Mr. President, I would point out to the members that tomorrow will be a working day, and plan to be here tomorrow afternoon.

The motion was agreed to.

The Senate adjourned at 7:02 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.